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GROUP II
DRFP Page 126, l.15 (b) Past Performance Questionnaires – Although not required by the DRFP, is it acceptable to submit Past Performance Questionnaires for non-major subcontractor teammates under the “Additional Information” provision?

Response:

No.  In addition, we will be removing the paragraph in L.15 that states. “However, offerors may submit additional information at their discretion if they consider such information necessary to establish a record of relevant past performance.”  As stated in L.15, offerors are to refer to FAR 15.305(a)(2)(iii).
DRFP Page 126, L.15 (a) – Is it permissible to cite contracts or subcontracts which are less than $5,000,000, but are relevant to the work the prime or subcontractor will perform on the Wallops ROS contract?
Response:

This request was considered however considering the maximum ordering value of the potential contract of $117,000,000, the $5,000,000 threshold has been determined reasonable by the Government.
H.20, page 47 – A note to this section indicates that an Offeror may adjust position titles as warranted for their approach.  May an Offeror also choose to not use all of the positions identified as Key Positions?
Response:

Yes.  The Offeror must utilize positions identified as Key Positions in H.20.  The Government will evaluate the Offeror’s Program Management Plan as defined in the RFP.
DRFP Page 125, L.15(a) – Is it permissible to cite past performance contracts or subcontracts for non-major subcontractors which are performing key SOW tasks?

Response:

See answer to Question 84.
Reference page 125, Section L.15 (a) – Past Performance Volume. “Offerors and any proposed major subcontractors…shall furnish the following information for your most recent contracts or subcontractors (completed and ongoing) for similar efforts of at least $5,000,000 in value which the companies have had within the last 3 years.”  Given the anticipated total value of and the IDIQ nature of the resulting contract, we suggest the Government increase the size of past performance contract references to $10,000,000 to ensure the successful Offeror has the size, depth, and breadth of capabilities as well as the financial resources needed to support the Government’s specified needs and the capacity to respond to any unanticipated needs or challenges such as acceleration in Task Order initiation.
Response:

As stated in the Response to Question #85, the $5,000,000 threshold has been determined reasonable by the Government.
The Government does not include the Risk Management Plan in the list of attachments.  Should we assume it will not be part of the contract?
Response:

No.  The RMP will be part of the contract and added to Section J.1 as Attachment R.  The Risk Management Plan is referenced in Section H.23.
Is it the government’s intent to include the Quality Assurance Plan in Supporting Documentation and exclude the plan’s page count in the Mission Suitability Volume?

Response:

We are changing the requirement for the Quality Assurance Plan to 30 days after the contract effective date.
141. L.11 (b), pg 102 – The Government has excluded the Plans identified as Supporting Documentation to the Mission Suitability Volume from page count limitations.  We suggest that page counts be assigned to each of these Plans to ensure that the Offerors provide concise and meaningful information relative to your requirements.  We suggest the following page count limitations:

· Phase-In Plan



20 pages

· Risk Management Plan

10 pages

· Total Compensation Plan

15 pages

· Small Business Subcontracting Plan
15 pages

· Safety and Health Plan

50 pages
· Program Management Plan

25 pages
Response:

We are going to change the RFP such that the page limitation for the Program Management Plan will be 100 pages.  We will not be establishing page counts for any of the other mentioned plans as indicated.

L.13, Subfactor B, pg 110 – The Government has limited Key Personnel resumes to one page in length.  We believe that this is insufficient to demonstrate the capabilities and experience for the Key Personnel required for this effort and suggest that the page limitation be increased to at least 2, and preferably 3 pages.
Response:

The Key Personnel resume page limit will be revised to 2 pages in Section L.13, Subfactor B.
L.13, Subfactor B, pg 110 – The Government has requested that a Staffing Plan be provided and has indicated that staffing levels should be shown in Exhibit 3 of the Cost Proposal.  Should staffing levels also be described in response to the Management Plan, Subfactor B, or will Exhibit 3 be sufficient to document the staffing levels?
Response:

Cost Exhibit 3 is not solely sufficient.  Cost Exhibit 3 will establish the proposed labor categories that become part of the Staffing Plan.  The Staffing Plan is not part of the Program Management Plan.
L.13, Subfactor B, pg 110 – The Government has requested numerous Plans for inclusion in Supporting Documentation to the Mission Suitability Volume.  However, the Staffing Plan identified in this section does not appear in the list of Plans to be submitted.  Would the Government please clarify whether a Staffing Plan is required and, if so, where it should be included?
Response:

The Staffing Plan is required and will be defined in L.11 and excluded from page count limitation.  The evaluation of the Offeror’s Staffing Plan will be moved to Subfactor A in Sections L and M.
L, p.120-121 – How does the Government define Overhead and Indirect Labor Pool?
Response:

The Overhead and other indirect rates are for the offeror to define by element and describe.  These rates are usually established by the offeror in accordance with Generally Acceptable Accounting Principles and are defined in their Cost Accounting System Disclosure Statement and approved accounting system to the Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA), as appropriate.

L.14.2 (a), p.120 – The government makes reference to on-site and offsite rates.  Are there personnel off-site?
Response:

All performance is anticipated to be on-site at NASA’s Wallops Flight Facility.  Travel is required to off-site locations for temporary remote range operations and these requirements will be defined in IDIQ Task Orders.
L.14.2 (f), pg 122 – The DRFP requires “An explanation of how all materials, computer services, travel, equipment and other direct costs were estimated.”  As the Government has provided plug numbers for travel and materials, can we assume that an explanation for these plug numbers is not required?
Response:

Offerors are to use the Government provided plug numbers for travel and materials and should not propose additional direct costs for materials and travel.  An explanation for these plug numbers is not required.  Section L.14 has been revised to clarify this requirement.
L.15 (a), pg 125 – The Government has required that Past Performance references be provided from efforts completed or on-going within the last 3 years.  We request that this be modified to allow Past Performance submittals for efforts within the past 5 years.

Response:

The Government has decided that the past 3 years is sufficient in communicating relevant past experience for this requirement.
L.17, pg 129 – The Government has requested a variety of information concerning Offerors’ property management systems.  In what section of the proposal should this information be included?
Response:

The property management information required in Sections L.17 and L.18 is to be provided in the Offer volume as stated in L.12 paragraph (c)(4).  The requirement for a Property Management Plan is being revised in Section J.1 to state that the plan will be submitted to the Government 30 days after contract effective date.

M, p.133-134 – Could the government provide clarification to the statement: “The project support implementation approaches for the complete mission set defined in RTO#1 …, will be evaluated for understanding, effectiveness, and comprehensiveness in aiding project implementation and readiness of those services provided by the Offeror.”  Please clarify “project support implementation” and “project implementation”.
Response:

Section M has been revised to remove the word “support” from the above quote.  Project implementation includes those project processes and initiatives the contractor expects to employ to meet the requirements in the SOW and RTO’s.

M, p.134, Section M4.1 – Will the Government provide the risk likelihood and consequence definitions for risk assessments?
Response:

Yes.  This reference was uploaded to the bidders library the week of September 8, 2008.

SOW, 15.5, p.50 – Will the contractor perform the Calibration Laboratory Services in an existing government facility?
Response:

SOW Section 15.5 will be modified to say, “Calibration laboratory services for test and operational equipment will be provided by the Government on-site.  The contractor shall be responsible for ensuring all equipment is calibrated per contractor and manufacturer defined directives and shall maintain calibration certifications current.  The contractor shall be responsible for delivering equipment to/from the on-site calibration laboratory at Wallops Flight Facility.  For those calibration services not obtainable from the on-site Government provided service due to technical or responsiveness requirements, the contractor shall obtain alternative calibrations services for those items, with approval from the CO.”
Are there plug numbers that the Government will provide other than those given for materials and travel for RTO #1 and #2?
Response:

There are no plug numbers that the Government will provide other than those given for materials and travel for RTO #1 and #2.
In the interest of leveling the playing field and preventing Offerors from submitting “low ball” bids, we suggest the following:  The Government provide staffing for the RTOs with instructions that the Offerors may deviate from the identified staffing but must provide substantiated rationale for any deviations.  The Government provide escalation rates for salaries and fringe benefits for all contract years.
Response:

We are not providing the offerors with staffing or escalation rate for salaries or fringe benefits for all contract years.
L.14.1, pg 120 – The intent of the following paragraph is unclear:

“The Government does not intend to issue a separate task order for overall contract program management. Accordingly, in accordance with the Offeror’s approved accounting systems, clearly indicate how program management costs will be captured and charged.”

Program Management is a SOW requirement and, in general, would be considered a direct cost.  It is unclear what elements of “overall contract program management”  (e.g, human resources, finance, and accounting, procurement, management) should be included in this indirect pool and what should be included as a direct charge under the RTO.  Would the Government please clarify what activities should be excluded from overall contract program management?
Response:

The SOW indicates the requirements the Government expects the offeror’s to provide.  How the offerors determine the labor categories associated with overall contract program management is up to the offeror and those management categories will be identified in the appropriate Cost Exhibit explaining/listing indirect rate categories, Cost Exhibit 5 and Exhibit 9.  The Government will not have a separate task order issued to manage the contract.  Program management is not necessarily a direct cost therefore, contractors are advised to propose program management consistent with how their accounting system captures and allocates costs.
ROC SOW, 3.0, pg 5 – The Government has specified that the contractor will use Maximo® V6.2.  Will the Government provide the required licenses and equipment necessary for the contractor to meet this requirement or should these be included in our cost for this effort?  If required to be included in our Cost Volume, should Offerors use the NASA Solutions for Enterprise Wide Procurement (SEWP) sources for pricing?
Response:

The SOW requirement in Section 3.0 has been changed to Maximo® V5.2 or higher.  The Government is NOT providing the Maximo® software or the associated licenses.  How the offerors determine the pricing for the licenses and Maximo® software package is an offeror’s business decision and the associated pricing should be included in the cost proposal for RTO #1.  Section G.9, paragraphs 13 and 15, has been clarified.
SOW 3.1.5, pg 8 – The Government requires that the contractor use WIIMS for task order tracking in support of this contract.  They have also indicated that WIIMS system operation training will be provided.  However, to fully develop the task management approaches, Offerors must have further information concerning WIIMS functionality, interfaces, and operations prior to proposal preparation.  Would the Government provide additional information as part of the Technical Data Package or within the RFP?
Response:

This information was provided at Industry Day and has been uploaded to the NAIS website.

SOW 5.1, pg 25 – The Government has indicated that IRSP must be used for radar DLM and may be used for other systems.  Will the Government provide a plug number for the IRSP maintenance of the radars?
Response:

Instrumentation Radar Support Program (IRSP) maintenance costs for radar systems are already included in materials plug numbers.
During Range Launch Operations, how many stations are manned at the RCC?  Mission area (center), Safety (left wing), Surveillance (right wing), Data Quality (right wing)?

Response:

The number of stations manned varies from mission to mission based on mission specific requirements.  The number of stations manned varies from none to all of the stations.  The number of stations manned is not critical to performance.  The number of personnel proposed associated with the Offeror’s proposal is more critical to this requirement.  The Offeror should propose the level of service needed to support the requirements defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.

The Aeronautical Control Cab is the smaller version of the RCC.  How many contractor personnel occupy the CAB when it is in use?

Response:

The number of personnel occupying this area varies with mission requirements.  The Offeror should propose the level of service needed to support the requirements defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.
How many contractor personnel occupy the Weather Observation Deck?  For day to day operations?  For launch operations?

Response:

The Offeror should propose the level of service needed to support the requirements defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.
How many contractor personnel manage the NASCOM Voice communication and Video Data?  Day to day basis?  During launch operations?

Response:

The Offeror should propose the level of service needed to support the requirements defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.
How frequently are the Mobile Range Control systems checked to ensure operational readiness?

Response:

This is determined by the contractor, their proposed maintenance approach, and their technical approach to meeting the requirements for operational readiness driven by the number of deployments assigned in IDIQ Task Orders.  The Offeror should propose the level of service and technical approach needed to support the requirements defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.
How frequently are the mobile generators tested to ensure deployment readiness?

Response:

Refer to Response in Question #113.


Who maintains IT systems?  How many techs/engineers are dedicated to this support?  Is there a help desk?  Is it local? Are response time/resolution records available?

Response:

Range instrumentation IT systems are maintained by the contractor and shall be bid in RTO #1.  Desktop administrative IT systems maintenance is provided by the Government through the NASA ODIN contract and the contractor shall not propose any associated costs.  
Is the mobile range control also known as the Ballistic Missile Range Safety Technology system?

Response:

No.  They are two separate systems.  The mobile range control is the Wallops system and the Ballistic Missile Range Safety and Telemetry (BMRST) system is a different system.
How will cost realism be assessed if there is no point deduction for unrealistic offers?

Response:

Cost realism is applied to the costs as they relate to the technical approach taken by the offeror.  For example, if the technical proposal describes in detail how a plumber will be used to meet requirements AND no plumber is listed in the skill mix in the cost proposal, the Government will use cost realism and add the plumber labor category and his associated labor rate and add the offeror’s proposed indirect costs and determine the total “probable” cost.  However, for this adjustment there will be no “point reduction taken for mission suitability” but the total contract cost will be increased by the cost of the plumber.  Additionally, resource realism will be a factor in the Mission Suitability evaluation and may result in weaknesses or significant weaknesses.  Please also reference the introduction of Section M.4.
Please confirm the Government wants the contractor’s financial system to interface with WIIMS to provide labor and cost information.  Is the contractor responsible for paying this cost for developing this interface to WIIMS?

Response:

In order for the WIIMS system to provide daily accuracy for costs incurred, as required in the SOW, something must interface with WIIMS.  It can be the contractor’s financial system OR some other intermediate compatible “system/ spreadsheet/database” providing the information.  The contractor is responsible for administering and/or developing this interface.  The SOW Section 3.1.5 requirement has been clarified.
With the final RFP more than 30 days away, why has the Government imposed a “Black Out” on communications?  A “black out” at such an early stage significantly favors the incumbent contractors.

Response:

A black out will go into affect after release of FRFP.  The purpose of limited communications currently in place is to ensure fair and consistent information for all interested offerors.  Questions may still be submitted in writing to the Contracting Officer.

Range Safety area was said to be outside of the responsibility of the ROC.  Does this include equipment maintenance and upgrade?

Response:

SOW Section 2.0 has been clarified to explain the responsibility of the contractor in support of Range Safety.
In Building N-162, how many contractor personnel work range communications on a day to day basis and during launch operations?

Response:

The Offeror should propose the level of service needed to support the requirements defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.
In Building N-162, how many contractor personnel work in the Meteorological Operations Room on a day to day basis and during launch operations?

Response:

The Offeror should propose the level of service needed to support the requirements defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.
In Building N-162, how many contractor personnel process Telemetry Data for customers?

Response:

The Offeror should propose the level of service needed to support the requirements defined in the SOW and associated RTO’s.
SOW, Section 4.1 (pg 21) – In some cases, for more demanding projects, the NASA Range Project Manager (PM) will have a civil servant leadership for certain range services elements.  In this case, the contractor shall support the civil servant lead that is appointed by the NASA Range PM in the aspects defined above.  Will NASA appoint a Civil Servant for Representative Task Order 1 and 2?  If yes, which launch operations will require a Civil Servant?

Response:

Reference to this requirement in SOW Section 4.1 has been removed.
Section L.13.3 (page 111) – Offerors shall provide written Position Qualifications for the specific labor categories envisioned for this requirement.  Offeror shall address the minimum qualification requirements, to include the necessary experience, summary of duties and responsibilities, specific requirements/licensing, and minimum education required for each position.  Each position qualification shall not exceed one (1) page in length.  Will the Final RFP include the labor categories to include required minimum qualifications?  A standard labor category baseline to understand NASA’s technical and operational requirements allows for a better understanding of your requirements which provide a common baseline for evaluation.

Response:

No, the final RFP will not include labor categories with minimum qualifications.  Offers shall propose the appropriate labor categories to perform the effort.
What are the data sources for LEADS besides ASOS?  How is data obtained?  Internet, FTP, SAT?

Response:
The data sources for LEADS includes local weather systems with serial interfaces, Automated Surface Observing System (ASOS) with both a satellite and network interface (redundant capability), and NOAA weather models interfacing to LEADS using a satellite and redundant network interface to NOAA. 
Can you provide the maintenance history on all primary fixed and mobile meteorological instrumentation and equipment at WFF and PFRR, to include maintenance records and spare parts requirements?

Response:

There were 455 corrective maintenance work orders for all instrumentation system issued during the period from September 1, 2007 to September 1, 2008.
Cost Exhibit 4 requires a summary of prime and major subcontractor hours in column (1) to calculate average hourly cost of doing business.  Can non-major subcontractor hours be included as well, since excluding these labor hours will not provide an accurate cost of doing business for offerors that have non-major subcontractors?

Response:  
No. The Government has determined that including only major subcontractors will provide adequate accuracy for cost evaluation purposes given the definition for major subcontractors versus total contract value.
SOW Page 5, third paragraph – This area calls out the ISO 9001:2000 standard for compliance for the quality management system.  However, for inspection and acceptance, DRFP page 13, paragraph E.4 references compliance with either AS9100 or CMMI-SE/SW Capability Level 2.  Which is required:  ISO 9001:2000 or one of the two other standards?  Also, where is the block that is to be checked located?

Response:
The RFP will be changed to remove references to AS9100.  AS9100 will be included, if required, in individual Task Orders and the SOW will be edited to show this requirement clarification.
DRFP Page 88, Section J.1 – Please provide the Government-desired format for Attachments C, K, J, & M.

Response:  
Attachment C has a format and was uploaded to the bidder’s library on September 10, 2008.   Attachment K can be a format of the offeror’s choice but the information to be included is defined in Section L.  Attachment J is information for contractor and is not required to be completed by the contractor.  Attachment M is a required form that must be completed using the directions included in the form.
DRFP Page 103, para L.11(b)(2) – Recommend allowing 8-point minimum font size for schedules only, to provide an additional level of detail.

Response:

The recommendation was considered however the Government has determined that 10-point minimum font size is adequate.
Section L, various cost schedules and exhibits – We have subcontractors that do not meet the major subcontractor threshold as defined in the DRFP and are the only ones performing in certain labor categories.  As a result, those labor categories (and related data) will not be included in the Total Compensation Plan, Schedule C, and Schedule K, since the instructions only require major subcontractor details.  Is this the Government’s intent?  

Response:  
The above claim is not accurate.  Offeror’s are required to submit a Total Compensation Plan in accordance with L.10 paragraph (d).
SOW para 3.2.2 – Please provide the current data systems safety and mission reliability percentages. 
Response:

This is a new requirement.  Current data systems safety and mission reliability percentages are not tracked.
Section L, last line of paragraph (g), page 123 – This method of computing the loaded hourly cost of doing business may not allow a valid comparison of the average hourly cost of doing business across teams as it will vary based on the percentage of work allocated to different subcontractors (major and minor).
Response:

We disagree.  The Government has determined that including only major subcontractors will provide adequate accuracy for cost evaluation purposes given the definition for major subcontractors versus total contract value.
Section L.17 para (c), page 129 – How does the information requested in this paragraph fit in the proposal structure provided by the Government (Table on page 102)?  Is this to be included in Attachment P as noted in Section J?
Response:  
As stated in Section L.12 paragraph (c)(4), this information is to be provided in the Offer Volume.  This information is not included in Attachment P.
Section L.15, para (a), page 126 – The last bulletized item states "List any contracts terminated…".  Does this mean all U.S. Government contracts that are similar in scope and complexity as those submitted in the past performance response?
Response:  
No.  In accordance with L.15 paragraph (a), all terminated contracts are to be listed.
Will offerors be provided with the matrices that will comprise Attachment C to the contract which is referenced in paragraph 2(a) to Section L.14?  Are these matrices intended to be populated with each offeror’s not-to-exceed direct labor rates, indirect rates and maximum award fee for each contract year?  
Response:   
The matrices for this requirement were uploaded to the NAIS website on September 10, 2008.  These matrices are to be populated with information as defined in Attachment C.
Will offerors be provided with a guide to the use of the Web based Wallops Institutional Information Management System (WIIMS) referenced in para (d) to Clause B.7 in the draft solicitation? 
Response:  
The above information available was available at Industry Day presentation and was uploaded to the NAIS website the week of September 8, 2008.
What facilities if any will the successful offeror be expected to make available and identify in completing Clause H.20 of the solicitation that addresses Key Personnel and Facilities?   Is the majority of the work on the contract expected to take place at NASA Goddard Space Flight/Wallops Flight Facility located in Wallops Island, VA? 
Response: 

All work will be performed on site in Government facilities with some travel required to government specified off site operations locations and Key Facilities will be removed from Section H.20.
What is the applicable DOL Wage Determination referenced in Attachment I to Section J of the solicitation? 
Response:  
The current Wage Determination was uploaded to NAIS website September 10, 2008.  
What are the equivalency wage rates for the Wallops Range Operations contract that will be added to Attachment J in Section J.1 of the solicitation? 
Response:  
Attachment J of Section J.1 was uploaded to NAIS website September 10, 2008.
Will general information related to an offeror’s general cost estimating methodology (i.e., overview of an offeror’s established accounting and cost estimating systems, discussion of forward pricing indirect rates, and labor escalation) be excluded from the page limits applicable to the BOEs for each of the priced WBS elements? 
Response:  
General cost information is excluded from the page limitations as is the cost proposal.  The BOE’s are page limited as defined in L.11.
With respect to Clause B.3, will the Government accept a cap on its indirect rates expressed as a multiplier recognizing that during contract performance the successful contractor may elect to change allocations made to its pools without such changes having an impact on its multiplier (i.e., moving cost elements accumulated in one pool to another indirect pool based on a change(s) made to an offerors CAS Disclosure Statement). 
Response:  
No.
With respect to Clause B.5, will funding made available to the contractor at the contract level or in individual task orders issued under the contract?
Response:  
Contract level.
Since the maximum amount of orders issued under this contract is expected to be in excess of $100 million, will the anticipated dollar value of this ID/IQ contract require the Government to consider restructuring the contract from a single contract award to multiple contract awards consistent with the FY2008 National Defense Authorization Act?  If the solicitation will be amended to include planned multiple awards, what is the anticipated number of planned awards to be made in connection with this procurement?
Response:  
The Government expects an exception to the FY2008 National Defense Authorization Act which will be approved.
Will the Surveillance Plan and Performance Evaluation Plan be added to Section J as attachments to the planned contract? 
Response:  
We do not currently anticipate attaching the Performance Evaluation Plan and Surveillance Plan in attachment J.
SOW Section 2.0 – In order to assess the future needs of the WFF with regard to sustainment of aging infrastructure in a highly corrosive environment or the potential replacement of that infrastructure, will the Government make available the maintenance records and lists of items replaced in the last five years either as part of the RFP or the electronic library/reading room materials associated with this procurement?
Response:

There were 455 corrective maintenance work orders for all instrumentation system issued during the period from September 1, 2007 to September 1, 2008.
SOW Section 2.0 – Does the government envision establishing a measure/metric for the Section 2.0 requirement for the contractor to achieve systems performance excellence and system service excellence is as described in Section 3.2.2?  If so, will the measure/metric be incorporated into the performance evaluation plan?
Response:  
The performance metrics defined in SOW Section 3.2.2 scope the requirements to be met to achieve systems performance excellence.  No other performance measure/metric is envisioned.
SOW Section 3.3 – Who are the current government members of the Configuration Control Board?  What has the meeting frequency of this Board been during the past five years?
Response:

Knowing the names of government members is not deemed necessary to meet the requirements of this effort.  The meeting frequency is approximately monthly or as necessary to meet mission requirements.
SOW Section 3.9 – What licenses and permits are currently required for the performance of the work outlined in the SOW?  Can the Government provide a brief description of each required license and permit?
Response:

The permits and licenses depend on mission requirements and the Offeror’s technical approach to meeting these mission requirements.  Any special licenses not otherwise defined in the SOW will be defined in subsequent Task Orders issued under this contract.
SOW Section 6.0 – What types of training and certification(s) are required for telemetry operations at the range?  Are these training and certification requirements expected to be accomplished before the end of 60-day Phase In period?
Response:

Any specific training or certification requirements are defined in the SOW and RFP including when they are to be accomplished.  Yes, it is fully expected that by the end of the Phase In period, the contractor will be able to meet all the requirements per the SOW.  Any special training and certification(s) not otherwise defined in the SOW will be defined in subsequent Task Orders issued under this contract.
SOW Section 7.0 – What types of training and certification(s) are required for precision tracking radar operations at the range?   Are these training and certification requirements expected to be accomplished prior to the completion of Phase In effort?
Response:

Any specific training or certification requirements are defined in the SOW and RFP including when they are to be accomplished.  Yes, it is fully expected that by the end of the Phase In period, the contractor will be able to meet all the requirements per the SOW.  Any special training and certification(s) not otherwise defined in the SOW will be defined in subsequent Task Orders issued under this contract.
SOW Section 8.0 – What is the NASA process by which the contractor personnel can attain a current Radar Data Acquisition Computer (RADAC) Data Quality Operator’s Certificate?  Can this process be completed during the phase-in period of the contract?  
Response:

The SOW Section 8.0 words for this requirement will be changed to read as follows:
Contractor personnel providing RCC services shall possess a Radar Data Acquisition Computer (RADAC) Data Quality Operator’s Certificate using a process that is developed by the contractor and approved by NASA.  The new process must be implemented within 3 months of the contract effective date. 

SOW Section 8.3 – This section states that “RealMedia and Windows Media shall be supported initially.”  What are the government’s plans to migrate to some other tool/package in the future, and in what time frame?
Response:

The Government has no plans to migrate to some other tool/package.
SOW Section 11.0 – What type of National Weather Service certification is required for making upper air and surface observations?  Can the Government provide general information concerning this certification requirement?  Is this certification required to be obtained prior to the completion of Phase In period?  
Response:

The NWS titles this as a “Certification of Observers”.  General information concerning this certificate can be found in numerous locations on the Web.  The certification shall be completed prior to the end of the contract Phase In period and this will be noted as such in SOW Section 11.0.
SOW Section 15.5 – Will the Government make available the current calibration certification records as part of the GFE/GFI associated with this contract within the electronic library? 
Response:

Information available is that between September 1, 2007 and September 1, 2008, a total of 1409 Inspection, Maintenance and Test Equipment calibration work orders were issued.
Reference Representative Task Order #1 entitled Wallops Range Operations.  In order to respond completely to RTO #1, it appears that the current library lacks significant information needed by the Offerors.  For example, in the area of the Sounding Rocket Alaska Campaign the library merely has a program plan which cites “This project plan will define the high-level programmatic aspects of conducting this campaign.”  The data missing is in the lower level activity schedules that deal with pre-campaign equipment checkout, pre-shipment payload checkout, deployment schedules (logistics schedules, travel schedules, etc.), pre-launch set up schedules, and tear down schedules.  Please provide this data that would allow us to fully respond and more importantly cost such a complex activity.
Response:

Additional mission requirements documents for each of the flight vehicle for the Alaska Sounding Rocket Campaign have been placed in the bidders library.  Launch and Government driven test dates are defined in the various documents in the library.  All other dates, many defined in your question above, are at the discretion of the contractor to ensure readiness for mission driven test and launch dates defined in mission requirements documents in the bidders library.  Therefore, the lower level activity schedules are predominantly defined by the contractor with the remaining elements included in the references already in the bidders library.
SOW 3.2.2, pg 11 – Will the Government provide a copy of NPR 8753.3 in the ROS Technical Library?
Response:

NPR 8753.3 has been changed to NPR 8715.5.  However, this NPR is restricted and is not viewable outside the NASA domain.  Additionally, this was not critical element for proposal evaluation.  Therefore, the Government will remove this reference from the SOW and modify the RFP to ensure evaluation of the Offeror’s ability in identifying NASA Safety Critical Systems is removed from the proposal evaluation criteria, RFP Sections L and M.
Where in the cost proposal should the cost of other IRSP support be reflected if that approach is chosen?
Response:

Other IRSP (Instrumentation Radar Support Program) support should be identified in the technical proposal and identified as an ODC in Cost Exhibit 6 with the associated cost broken out on a spreadsheet along with the Basis of Estimate for the Government’s understanding.
What is the day-to day work location for Range Control Center personnel when not at the RCC?

Response:

The day-to day work location for Range Control Center personnel when not at the RCC is in work space offices provided by the Government under the contract.  This is defined in clause G.10, Installation Accountable Government Property.
Clause E.4 requires AS9100 and/or CMMI SE/SW Capability Level 2 compliance, however the Statement of Work Section 3.0 requires ISO 9001-2000 compliance.  Please clarify which quality standard is required for any specific function or work to be performed by the contractor.    
Response:

The RFP will be changed to remove references to AS9100.  AS9100 will be included, if required, in individual Task Orders and the SOW will be edited to show this requirement clarification.

AS9100 is a standard derived from ISO-9001 that specifically applies to the aerospace industry and focuses on the intended “product”.  Additionally, the scope of the certification audit is limited to the quality management system under which the “products” are manufactured.  What specific aspects of the Range Operations Contract drive the requirement for AS9100 compliance?  
Response:

The RFP will be changed to remove references to AS9100.  AS9100 will be included, if required, in individual Task Orders and the SOW will be edited to show this requirement clarification.
What “aerospace products and/or services” does the government contemplate being included in the scope of the compliance/audit?  
Response:

All of the elements are considered within the scope of compliance to the required standards defined in the SOW and RFP.
Please identify any “key characteristics” or “special processes” for which the government requires government inspection points, special tooling, documentation, treatment or handling? 
Response:
The Government has defined all key characteristics and special processes required in the RFP, SOW, Surveillance Plan and RTO’s.
AS9100 also puts emphasis on the compliance with aerospace regulatory requirements.  Please identify any regulatory requirements, if applicable, that apply to the products and services provided by the WFF Range Operations contractor.
Response:

The RFP will be changed to remove references to AS9100.  AS9100 will be included, if required, in individual Task Orders and the SOW will be edited to show this requirement clarification.

RFP Clause H.20 identifies five key positions for the contract, and the Surveillance Plan describes the Government’s primary contract surveillance approach.  Additionally, SOW 3.1 refers to the Contractor Range Services Manager as the “single review spokesperson.”  Please clarify how the contractor key personnel, in particular the positions other than the Range Services Manager, relate to and interface with the Government’s surveillance team. 
Response:

The primary interface is always the COTR.  As stated in the Surveillance Plan, the Government has the responsibility for independently assuring that the Range Operations services contractor's operations meet NASA's performance requirements and enable the range mission customers' success.  As such, surveillance team members have open access, on a non-interference basis, to all areas in which the contractor’s work is being performed and will interface directly with their Range Operations services contractor counterparts.  Government expertise with regards to various Range Operations service areas may be applied in the form of technical consultants and/or providing assistance or leadership at working group meetings, integrated range team meetings, design/development and specification reviews, review board meetings, surveys, audits, in-plant representatives, and program reviews.

RFP, Section E, Clause E.4.52.246-11 Higher Level Contract Quality Requirements indicates the contractor shall comply with the higher-level quality standard selected below and then lists AS91000 Quality Management System-Aerospace-Requirements. In the SOW, Section 3.0 Program Management, it indicates the contractor will comply with ISO 9001-2000 standards, though ISO certification is not required.  Please provide clarification on which higher level quality standard that the contractor must comply with.

Response:

The RFP will be changed to remove references to AS9100.  AS9100 will be included, if required, in individual Task Orders and the SOW will be edited to show this requirement clarification.
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